
SUBJECT

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

P.M. NAME

REGULAR SESSION OF THE PAMLICO COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2024

7:00 Chairman Bohmert Call Meeting to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of the March 18, 2024 Budget Retreat 
minutes and April 1, 2024 Regular Session minutes 

7:05 Daniel Simpson Cooperative Extension- Presentation 

Additions and/or deletions to the Agenda

CONSENT AGENDA
23-24-176 Request for approval of Budget Amendments

23-24-177 Request to approve  to Release/Refund GAP Bills Erroneoulsy Issued to 
Elected Officials  

23-24-183 Request to approve Town of Vandemere's request for Enforcement of Pamlico 
County Dangerous Animal Ordinance within Town 

23-24-178 Request for approval to Upgrade Body/Car Camera System for Sheriff's 
Department

23-24-179 Request to Reappoint Debra Harrison to PCC Board of Trustees 

23-24-180 Request for Appointmemt of JCPC

23-24-181 Request for approval of Resolution Supporting Application for SRF Funding 

CORRESPONDENCE AGENDA

23-24-182 Request for approval to Release GAP Bill for Jesse Adams 

23-24-184 Request for approval of Project Ordinance for Kershaw Water Treatment 
Plant Project

23-24-185 Request to Select Architect to Implement Recommendations of Pamlico County 
Space Planning and Feasibility Study

23-24-186 Request for approval of Amended Plat - Cutter Bay Subdivision 

23-24-187 Health Director Quarterly Report 

23-24-188 Request for Closed Session to discuss Health Director Performance Review 

County Commissioner, County Attorney, County Manager and Finance Officer time and closed session if
applicable.



BUDGET RETREAT MINUTES FOR THE  
PAMLICO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 20, 2024 AT 9:00AM 
CAMP SEAFARER, TAYLOR LODGE 

The Pamlico County Board of Commissioners met for a Budget Retreat Meeting on Wednesday 
March 20, 2024 at 9:00am at Camp Seafarer’s Taylor Lodge. Commissioners Missy Baskervill, 
Candy Bohmert, Doug Brinson, Kari Forrest, Carl Ollison, Pat Prescott, and Ed Riggs  were 
present.  Also present were County Manager Tim Buck, Finance Officer Bill Fentress, Personnel 
Director Chantelle Allison and Clerk to the Board Tracy Boyd.  This meeting was open to the 
public, and proper notice was given. 

Chairman Bohmert called the meeting back to order (recessed from the regular Commissioner’s 
meeting on March 18, 2024) at 9:00am and turned the meeting over to County Manager Tim Buck 
and Finance Officer Bill Fentress.

The Board then began the Budget Meeting.  The purpose of the meeting was: 

1. To provide an overview of the proposed budget, including requests from the different
County departments

2. Share information requested by the County Commissioners
3. Address specific questions and empower the Commissioners to make informed decisions

and facilitate discussion
4. Identify additional governmental needs/actions/issues, group these needs into short-term

(coming FY 2024-2025) and long-term (beyond coming FY) and prioritize these needs
for action.

Finance Officer Bill Fentress and County Manager Tim Buck presented the following: 
• Reviewed recent financial statements and projections.
• Budget requests from the different departments, noting some that had large increases in

their requested amount.
• As of February 2024, the General Fund Cash 13.1 million (Does not include 1.9 million

restricted for BOC – directed ARPA uses 2023 does include 450k grant for ball park)
• He advised the Board of the total revenues key areas are up 4.70% (Year to year or

$733,352 vs $223,101 this time last year. The major revenue streams are listed:
o Ad Val +2.98%
o Sales Tax +4.12%
o Jail +13.92%
o Investment Earnings +50.82%
o Permits and Fees +14.58%

• Medicaid Hold Harmless – 170k less in 2024
• Estimated % Fund Balance at YE 2024 based on $25 million expenses - 29% or 7.2

million Unrestricted Funds (Need to follow the next 3 months)
• Estimated (YE Net) 2023 Revenue – Expenses (without ARPA) -300K

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



• Preliminary Summary of 2025 Budget  
o Revenue - $22,941,685 
o Expenses - $26,959,141 
o Deficit - $4,017,456 

 
County Manager Tim Buck turned the meeting over to Tim Oakley from Oakley Collier for their 
presentation. 
 
Tim Oakley and his colleagues Ann Collier and Jennifer Starkey presented a space study on 
Pamlico County Law Enforcement Center and discussed options for funding below: 

• Sheriff has $3.2 million appropriated for Sheriff’s Building and Storage Needs 
• Review of Sheriff’s Office, Jail, and Emergency Management’s Needs  
• Proposed Options: 

o Stand – alone EOC/Dispatch Building  
o Addition to Sheriff’s Building  

• Estimated Costs: 
o Option A: Construct Phase 1B (EOC/Dispatch Portion of Master Plan) $3,530,573 
o Option B: Add on to Existing Sheriff’s Building $4,296,537 

• Pros and Cons of each option  
 
On a motion from Commissioner Baskervill, seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the request to Approve Option A: Construct Phase 1B (EOC/Dispatch 
Portion of Master Plan) from Oakley Collier proposed space study for Pamlico County 
Law Enforcement Center with a cost of $3,530,573 is hereby approved.  
 
Chairman Bohmert thanked Tim Oakley and his colleagues for their presentation and turned the 
meeting back over to County Manager Tim Buck to introduce Lobbyist Jamie Norment from 
Ward and Smith. 
 
Lobbyist Jamie Norment from Ward and Smith along with his collages Whitney Campbell 
Christensen and Trafton Dinwiddie, formally introduced themselves and presented information 
on current legislative topics and requested input from the Board on the County’s needs as well.  
Some topics discussed were: 

• Explanation of process of developing legislative agenda for the County 
• Establishing communications plans 
• Creating tracking list of issues to monitor (prioritizing long and short-term goals) 
• Update General Assembly delegation  
• Refine Short Session priorities  
• Assess executive branch/commission lobbying needs  
• Scheduling County advocacy day 
• Funding for different projects in the county  

By consensus, the Board designated the County Manager as the point of contact for lobbying 
communication. 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



County Attorney Dave Baxter – presented a power point discussing the Review of Recent Changes 
in Laws and Concerns which are listed: 

• Increase Areas if Risk for Local Gov.  
o Labor Claims 
o Jails Deaths 
o PFAS 
o ACLU records request – medical treatment in detention centers 
o 1st Amendment Change – social media  

 
The board discussed various potential County Ordinances: Fire Prevention and Protection 
Ordinance and Buildings and Building Regulations and also topics including Rules of Procedure, 
County Manager and Finance Officer Succession Planning, Grant Writer and Broadcasting/ 
Recording Board Meetings.  
 
The Board directed the County Manager to advertise the Assistant County Manager position, that 
will transition to County Manager position upon the retirement of the current County Manager. 
The process will start as early as July, 2024. Similarly, the Board directed staff to advertise the 
Finance Officer opening, such that a candidate would have 6 months to train with Finance Officer 
prior to retirement.  
 
Commissioners Bohmert and Baskervill left the meeting early. Vice Chair Doug Brinson presided 
over the meeting. 
 
On a motion from Commissioner Riggs, seconded by Commissioner Forrest, the following 
resolution was reconsidered and unanimously approved. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the request to reconsider Fire Prevention and Protection Ordinance 
and Buildings and Building Regulations is hereby approved. 
 
On a motion from Commissioner Forrest, seconded by Commissioner Prescott, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the request to adopt the Fire Prevention and Protection Ordinance 
and Buildings and Building Regulations is hereby approved. 
 
There being no further business, on a motion made by Commissioner Riggs and seconded by 
Commissioner Brinson, the Board adjourned until the next regular meeting on Monday, April 1, 
2024 at 7:00 pm.   
 
 

______________________________________ 
Chairman     

 
 

______________________________________ 
  Clerk to the Board 
DRAFT M

IN
UTES



 
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES OF THE 

PAMLICO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MONDAY, APRIL 1, 2024 

 
 
 
 
The Pamlico County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Monday, April 1, 2024 at 7:00pm 
in the Patsy H. Sadler room of the Pamlico County Courthouse.  Commissioners Missy Baskervill, Candy 
Bohmert, Doug Brinson, Kari Forrest, Pat Prescott, Ed Riggs and Carl Ollison  were present. Also present 
were Attorney Ross Hardeman, County Manager Tim Buck, Finance Officer Bill Fentress and Clerk to the 
Board Tracy Boyd.   

Chairman Bohmert called the meeting to order. Rev. Grady Simpson offered the invocation, and Chairman 
Bohmert led the assemblage in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Chairman Bohmert asked if there were any corrections, additions, and/or deletions to the March 18, 2024 
Regular Session Minutes and Closed Session Minutes. There were no changes, then on a motion made by 
Commissioner Riggs and seconded by Commissioner Brinson, the following resolution was unanimously 
approved. 

BE IT RESOLVED, the March 18, 2024 Regular Session Minutes and Closed Session Minutes 
are hereby approved, and the Chairman’s signature is authorized thereon.  

PUBLIC COMMENT:  1 member of the public signed up to speak.  

Mr. Ken Heath spoke about how it would be beneficial to add a public comment period to the 2nd meeting 
of the month.  

Chairman Bohmert thanked those that spoke and closed the Public Comment period. 

Chairman Bohmert asked if there were any other additions and/or deletions to the agenda, and there were 
no motions made.  

The Board then turned their attention to the Consent Agenda 

On a motion made by Commissioner Prescott and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolutions were unanimously approved.  

 BE IT RESOLVED, the following FY23-24 Budget Amendment(s) are hereby approved. [23-24-
175] 

 

Department: DSS          #24-109 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
105550-519900  HCCBG Contracted Services Level II $  28,580.00 
105373-519900 III HCCBG Contracted Services Level III    $  28,580.00  
 
Reason for Budget Revision:  To move funds from level III to level II due to the clients we are currently serving. 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 

 

 

 

 

 
Department: Sheriff Department        #24-110 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
100200-434307  Summer Camp – Sheriff   $  4,730.00 
104310-549912  Sheriff Outreach Expenses   $  4,730.00  
 
Reason for Budget Revision:  To recognize revenue from Summer Camp – Sherriff and increase Sheriff Outreach expenses 
line. 
 

Department: Sheriff Department        #24-111 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
100213-434328  Controlled Substance - Restricted  $  4,715.72 
104310-539801  Controlled Substance Expenses  $  4,715.72  
 
Reason for Budget Revision:  To recognize revenue and increase controlled substance expense line. 
 

Department: Sheriff Department        #24-112 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
100226-403253  ABC Law Enforcement   $  3,876.00 
104310-539801  Controlled Substance Expenses  $  3,876.00  
 
Reason for Budget Revision:  To recognize revenue and increase controlled substance expense line. 
 

Department: Health Department        #24-113 
__________________________________________________________________ 
. 

    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
105117-512100  COVID Salaries & Wages      $  8,000.00 
105117-529000  COVID Departmental Supplies  $  8,000.00  
 
Reason for Budget Revision:  Moving funds as needed. 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval of the Tax Office Board Releases is hereby 
approved, and the Chairman’s signature is authorized thereon. [23-24-176]

BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval to Renew the VC3 Contract, is hereby approved. 
[23-24-177]

BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval of Part-Time Employee Roster for FY 23-24, is 
hereby approved. [23-24-179] 

BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval to Contract with Magette Well and Pump 
Company for Grantsboro WTP Well Repairs, is hereby approved. [23-24-180] 

On a motion made by Commissioner Prescott, seconded by Commissioner Ollison and unanimously 
approved, the request for approval to Purchase Drone for Sheriff’s Department was tabled. [23-24-178] 

The Board then turned their attention to the Correspondence Agenda. 

On a motion made by Commissioner Ollison and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved.  

BE IT RESOLVED, the request to work with the Town of Vandemere for a Resolution from 
the Town of Vandemere Requesting Enforcement of the Pamlico County Dangerous Animal 
Ordinance within the town, is hereby approved. [23-24-181]  

On a motion made by Commissioner Ollison and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 

Department: Health Department #24-114 
__________________________________________________________________ 

FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION    |  AMOUNT (+)      | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER      | |  INCREASED       | DECREASED 

105110-535100 General M & R Grounds $  4,000.00 
104350-555000 Inspections Capital $  4,000.00 

Reason for Budget Revision:  Funds provided to assist with EH & Inspections bathroom restorations. 

Department: Cooperative Extension #24-115 
__________________________________________________________________ 

FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION    |  AMOUNT (+)      | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER      | |  INCREASED       | DECREASED 

100600-400000 Miscellaneous Revenue $  300.00 
100400-436122 Class Fees $  540.00 
104950-529000 Departmental Supplies $  840.00  

Reason for Budget Revision:  To recognize revenue and increase Departmental Supplies line. 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 BE IT RESOLVED, the approval of Plat for Lucille Hall Subdivision, is hereby approved, 
contingent on getting signature from surveyor on the plat. [23-24-182] 

On a motion made by Commissioner Baskervill and seconded by Commissioner Prescott, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 

 BE IT RESOLVED, the approval of Article 46 Referendum Resolution, is hereby approved. 
[23-24-183] 

A RESOLUTION TO PLACE A ONE-QUARTER OF ONE CENT LOCAL OPTION 
SALES TAX ON THE NOVEMBER 5, 2024 GENERAL ELECTION BALLOT 

IN PAMLICO COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina General Assembly has authorized County Boards of Commissioners 

across the State of North Carolina to levy a one-quarter of one cent (.25% of one penny) 
county sales and use tax, contingent on an advisory referendum in which the majority of those 
casting ballots in the County vote for the levy of the tax; and 

WHEREAS, the Pamlico County Board of Commissioners believes in providing its citizens the best 
possible services; and 

WHEREAS, the Pamlico County Board of Commissioners recognizes the local option sales tax does not 
burden the property owners as is done when increasing the local property tax rate; and 

WHEREAS, the Pamlico County Board of Commissioners will use the funds for mandated services and 
possibly to lower the local property tax rate; and 

WHEREAS, one cent of local property tax equates to approximately $180,000 per year, versus almost 
   $400,000 in revenue from one-fourth of a penny in sales tax revenue; and 

WHEREAS, the implementation of a one-quarter cent local option sales tax (excluding gas, prescription 
medication, and non-prepared foods or groceries) is anticipated to generate approximately 
$400,000 in revenue per year in Pamlico County. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Pamlico County Board of Commissioners hereby directs the Pamlico County Board 
of Elections as follows: 

1. Conduct an advisory referendum on the question of whether to levy a local sales and use tax in the 
county as provided in N.C. General Statute§105-535 et seq. 

2. The election shall be held on the November 5, 2024 General Election and shall be held in 
accordance with the procedures of N.C. General Statute§ 163-287. 

3. The form of the question to be presented on a ballot for the election concerning the levy of the tax is 
established by the NC General Statutes as: 

{ } FOR { } AGAINST 

Local sales and use tax at the rate of one-quarter percent (0.25%) 
In addition to all other State and local sales and use taxes. 

 
 
Adopted this the 1st day of April, 2024. 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



Candy Bohmert, Chairman 
Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 

Tracy Boyd, Clerk to the Board 

*************** 

The Board discussed Ambulance/Rescue Service District Tax. No action was taken. [23-24-184] 

There being no further business, on a motion made by Commissioner Riggs and seconded by 
Commissioner Prescott, the Board adjourned until the next regular meeting on Monday, April 15, 2024 
at 7:00pm. Time Recorded: 8:23pm. 

______________________________________ 
Chairman 

______________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



BUDGET AMENDMENTS

Tab 1

callison
Highlight

callison
Cross-Out





























































































BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Release/Refund Gap Bills Erroneously Issued to Elected Officials 

See attached memorandum from Tax Administrator Lauren Murray requesting release 
and refund respectively of gap bills erroneously issued to Commissioners Ollison and 
Riggs.  I am recommending and requesting approval of the actions. 

Tab 2



















BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE: Upgrade Body/Car Camera System for Sheriff’s Department 

Administrative Officer Scott Houston is requesting to upgrade the body/car camera 
system.  Officer Houston says the current system is no longer supported. Cost of the 
upgrade is $29,000.  A purchase order and supporting documentation is attached.  Funds 
are available in the Sheriff’s Capital Line. 

Because the purchase is for equipment at a cost of more than $5,000, it qualifies as a 
capital item.  The item was not requested nor approved in the FY 23-24 budget.  Per our 
finance policy, capital items not approved within the annual budget must be approved by 
the Board of Commissioners. 

I am recommending and requesting approval. 

Tab 3





















































BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Request to Reappoint Debra Harrison to PCC Board of Trustees. 

Please see the attached correspondence from Pamlico Community College that asks 
the Board of Commissioners to reappoint Ms. Debra Harrison to the PCC Board of 
Trustees.  I am requesting Board direction. 

Tab 4





BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Appointment to JCPC  

Please see attached volunteer application form from Ms. Marlo Blake interested in 
serving on the Pamlico County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council. Ms. Blake will fill the 
Chief Court Counselor position. This is a mandatory position and Ms. Blake meets the 
criteria for serving in this role.  

 I am recommending and requesting approval to appoint Ms. Blake to JCPC. 

Tab 5







BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE: Resolution Supporting Application for SRF Funding 

Todd Tripp, our contract engineer for the Grantsboro/Kershaw Project is requesting that 
the Board pass the attached resolution.  The resolution supports an application for a State 
Revolving Fund grant/loan for the Grantsboro Water Treatment Plant Project.  I am 
recommending and requesting approval.  

Tab 6









BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Request to Release Gap Bill for Jesse Adams 

Please see the attached request from Jesse Adams requesting release of a gap bill of 
$170.33.  In reviewing the documentation presented, it appears that the conditions listed 
in NCGS 105-381 (a) (1), cited by Ms. Murray, are not met.  I do not believe that bill can 
be released under this statute and recommend that the Board deny the request. 

Tab 7













BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:     Town of Vandemere Request Enforcement of Pamlico County Dangerous 

    Animal Ordinance within Town 

At the prior meeting the Board received a resolution passed by the Town of Vandemere 
requesting the County to enforce the Dangerous Animal Ordinance within the town limits 
of Vandemere.   The Board directed the County Attorney to draft a joint resolution to be 
approved by both Boards. County Attorney Dave Baxter drafted the attached resolution. 
I am requesting discussion by the Board and direction regarding actions that need to be 
taken. 

Tab 8



1 
 

JOINT RESOLUTION 
of 

PAMLICO COUNTY 
and 

TOWN OF VANDEMERE 
 

 
WHEREAS, Pamlico County (“County”) has adopted the Pamlico County Dangerous 

Animal Ordinance (“Ordinance”), applicable within the unincorporated areas of Pamlico County; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, Section 153A-122(b) of the North Carolina General Statutes provides that a 

county ordinance may, upon resolution, be applicable within an incorporated municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Vandemere (“Town”) desires that the Ordinance be applicable 

within the corporate limits of the Town, and to be administered and otherwise enforced by the 
County within the Town. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the parties as follows: 
 

1. The Ordinance shall be applicable within the Town upon the adoption of this 
Resolution by the last party to execute the same. 

 
2. Once effective within the Town, the County shall administer and otherwise 

enforce the Ordinance within the Town. 
 

3. This Resolution may subsequently be withdrawn and rescinded by either party 
upon thirty (30) days’ advance written notice to the other; and thereafter, the 
Ordinance shall cease to have application within the Town. 

 
 
Adopted this ____ day of _________, 2024 by the Town of Vandemere. 
 

 
TOWN OF VANDEMERE 

 
(Town Seal) 
      __________________________ 
      Sandra A. Snipes, Mayor 
 
Attest:  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Sue Britt, Town Clerk 
 



 2 

 
 
 
 

Adopted this ____ day of _________, 2024 by Pamlico County. 
 
 
 

      PAMLICO COUNTY 
 
(County Seal) 
      _________________________________ 
      Candy Bohmert, Chair 
 
Attest: 
 
  
______________________________ 
Tracy Boyd, Clerk 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE: Project Ordinance for Kershaw Water Treatment Plant Project 

Please see attached Project Ordinance related to the Kershaw Water Treatment Plant 
Project.  I am recommending and requesting approval. 

Tab 9



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT - TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON – AT LARGE 

EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL -TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

CAPITAL PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE 

Grantsboro/ Kershaw WTP Improvements 

Be it ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Pamlico County, North Carolina, that pursuant to section 
13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital Project Ordinance is 
hereby adopted: 
Section 1: The Project authorized is the construction/rehabilitation of a water treatment facility to be 
financed by a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund loan with principal forgiveness and a S.L. 2023-134 
appropriation of State Reserve Funds. 
Section 2: The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project within the 
terms of the board resolution, loan documents and the budget contained herein. 
Section 3: The following amounts are appropriated for the project : 

Project Expenses  Total Amount    Eligible Amount 

Construction Contract      $5,395,000    $5,395,000 
Contingency             $540,000       $540,000 
Technical Services 
(Planning & Design) *      212,000        $212,000 
Technical Services 
(Construction Phase)*        $188,000       $188,000 
Permitting*         $5,000      $5,000 
Closing Costs          $59,542 

Totals   $6,399,542    $ 6,340,000** 

*Subject to further review** Current Funding Offer is $3,747,000 in DWSRF funds. The County has
indicated in the Request For Funding for S.L. 2023-134 that the funding to be utilized will be $ 2,977,100 in
DWSRF funds and $3,362,900 in State Reserve funds from S.L. 2023-134.

Section 4: The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this project: 

Funding Source            Amount 
WIF- 2005 DWSRF    $2,977,100.00 
S.L. 2023-134 State Reserve
Fund  $3,362,900.00 
Local Funds-Closing Costs        $59,542.00 
Total Project Funds    $6,399,542.00 

Section 5: The finance officer is hereby directed to maintain within the capital project fund sufficient 



specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency, the grant 
agreements, and federal regulations. The terms of the resolution also shall be met. 

Section 6: Funds may be advanced from the General Fund for the purpose of making payments as due. 
Disbursement requests should be made to the grantor agency in an orderly and timely manner. 

Section 7: The finance officer is directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial status of each 
project element in section 3 and on the total grant/loan revenues received or claimed. 

Section 8: The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs and 
revenues on this capital project in every budget submission made to this board. 

Section 9: Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be furnished to the clerk to the Governing Board, 
and to the Budget Officer and the Finance officer for direction in carrying out this project. 

Duly adopted this   ______    day of 2024 

__________________________________ 
Signature, Tim Buck, County Manager 

(Seal) 

Attest:  ___________________________ 
    Signature



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Select Architect to Implement Recommendations of Pamlico County Space 

     Planning and Feasibility Study 

The County solicited Statements of Qualifications from qualified architects to provide 
design services in the implementation of recommendations identified in the Pamlico 
County Space Planning and Feasibility Study document published December, 2023.  
Deadline to receive SOQs is April 12th.  

I am requesting that the Board reserve time on the agenda to discuss any proposals 
received and to rank the firms based on the criteria listed in the Request for 
Qualifications (attached).   

If approved, I am requesting that the Board authorize the Chair, County Manager and 
Finance Officer to sign contract documents. 

Tab 10



Pamlico County, NC 

Request for Qualifications 

Architectural Services 

Issued March 25, 2024 

 

 

I. Project Overview 

Pamlico County request Statements of Qualifications from qualified architects to provide 
design services in the implementation of recommendations identified in the Pamlico 
County Space Planning and Feasibility Study document published December, 2023.  
The Board of Commissioners chose “Option A” recommendations of the study. This 
Option proposes the construction of 4 new buildings: 1) Health Department/Senior 
Services Center, 2) Dispatch/EOC, 3) Maintenance Shop, and 4) Courthouse/Admin 
Building.  In addition, the study calls for additions to the Pamlico County Law 
Enforcement Center and renovation of the Public Service Building.  Implementation of 
the recommendations will be conducted in the following phases as funds allow: 

Phase I:  Health Dept/Senior Services Center Building  

Dispatch/EOC 

Addition to Law Enforcement Center 

Maintenance Shop 

Phase II:   New Courthouse and County Administration Building 

Phase III:   Renovate Public Service Building 

Pamlico County Board of Commissioners approved the construction of an EOC/Dispatch 
building as the first project that will be implemented from the study.  The project is funded 
by a $3.2 million State grant and must be completed by the end of September, 2025.  

Specific tasks of the selected architectural Firm may include:  

• Meet with County representatives and/or other team members as needed to discuss 
the design concepts and coordinate the Firm’s work.  

• Review existing plans and documentation to become familiar with the original design 
capabilities and configurations of various types of flooring materials.  

• Perform field investigations of the locations involved to gain a better understanding of 
existing conditions.  

• Provide feasibility analyses and/or studies.  



• Provide construction documents, including drawings and specifications, suitable for 
review, permit, and bid.  

• Provide a timeline for the implementation and completion of this project.  

• Provide construction cost estimates.  

• When necessary, attend required meetings with local authorities having permit or 
board approval jurisdiction.   

 • Prepare bid documents, assist with the bidding process and permitting to answer 
questions, and provide plan revisions as required.  

• Provide oversight of the construction activities.  

• Provide shop drawing reviews and responses to RFIs. 

 • Provide close-out phase services, including, but not limited to, submission of 
drawings, as- built drawings (PDF or other Formats), and other project related 
documents. 

 

II. Schedule 

March 25, 2024  - RFQ Issued 

April 05, 2024 – Deadline for Questions 

April 12, 2024 – Responses Due by 3:00 PM 

April 15, 2024 – Responses Presented to Board of Commissioners and Possible 
Selection of Firm. 

 

III. Contents of Responses 

Each proposal submitted in response to this solicitation should address the following 
elements:  

1. A description of the professional qualifications of the firm and staff proposed 
for the Pamlico County Capital Projects.  Clearly indicate the experience (with 
current and previous firms) and roles of staff members. Include information 
about the firm’s professional registration in North Carolina.  

2. An explanation of the Architect’s approach to addressing the proposed scope 
of services outlined in this document.  

3. A brief description of projects completed that are similar in scope and size. 
For each project listed, please include the name of the entity and the name 
and contact information of the person who would be familiar with the work 
performed. 



4. A schedule of hourly compensation rates for the proposed project team.  
5. Additional references. 

 

IV. Evaluation Criteria 

All submittals will be ranked based on qualifications and the most qualified firm will be 
selected.   The following criteria will be the basis upon which consultants will be 
evaluated (in no particular order): 

• Appropriate expertise and experience in developing environmentally sensitive projects, 

• Past performance of the lead consulting firm, on similar projects, 

• Adequate and experienced staff and proposed team for the project,  

• Recent experience with successfully maintaining project schedules and budgets, 

• Current workload and firm capacity,  

• Understanding of the area where the project is located,  

• Working arrangements with necessary consultants, and  

• Other factors that may be relevant to the project. 

 

V. Selection 

As a general guide to prospective proposers, the Professional Services selection 
procedures adopted by North Carolina, appropriately modified by Pamlico County, will 
be employed in the selection process. Pamlico County may or may not interview 
potential candidates to assist in the selection process. 

VI. Proposal Submittal 

Electronic email responses only will be accepted for this solicitation. Respondents 
should enter “RFQ PC-041224”: as the subject for the email. Electronic (PDF Format) 
submittals should be less than 15MB in size and submitted by 3:00 p.m. EST,  April 12, 
2024.  Responses should be emailed to Tim Buck at the following email address:  
tim.buck@pamlicocounty.org 

VII. General Conditions 
• Any submittals become property of Pamlico County 
• Pamlico County reserves the unqualified right to reject any and / or all statements 

of qualifications, and to waive any informalities in so far as it is authorized to do 
so and further specifically reserves the right to make the award in the best 
interest of the County. Qualified firms interested in providing qualification 



statements or having questions for this project may contact Tim Buck by email:  
tim.buck@pamlicocounty.org 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Amended Plat – Cutter Bay Subdivision 

At the March 18th meeting, the Board approved the final plat for Cutter Bay Subdivision. 
The plat was approved contingent on receiving the bond for the roads and utilities.  It is 
my understanding that the bond could not be issued until DOT approved the road 
design. In working with DOT to obtain approval of the road design, the developers 
learned that the cul-de-sac designs in the approved plat were not compliant with DOT 
standards. As a result, developers changed the design of the cul-de-sacs on the plat to 
be compatible with DOT standards.  DOT approved the road design in the amended 
plat.  See attached correspondence from DOT. 

After receiving DOT approval, the developers submitted the amended plat to 
Subdivision Administrator Ray Bennett, requesting approval.  Mr. Bennett reached out 
to the County attorney to determine if the amended plat needed to go back to the 
Planning Board for approval. 

County Attorney Dave Baxter states that because the plat approved on March 18th was 
approved conditioned on receiving the bond and because the changes to the plat were 
needed to meet those conditions, the Board can reconsider the plat without referring the 
issue to the Planning Board.  

The amended plat is included in your Board Packet.  I am requesting discussion by the 
Board and consideration of approval. 

Tab 11



2/1/24D022-069-24-00016

Complete set of S/D plans posted on portal



2/1/24

1. An approved copy of the permit, plans and attachments shall be on-site during all times of construction.
2. All workmanship and materials shall conform to NCDOT standards and specifications.
3. The owner shall make satisfactory arrangements to adjust any utilities in conflict with proposed construction.
4. Traffic control devices shall be in accordance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.
5. The permit applicant must comply with all state, federal and local environmental regulations and shall obtain all necessary 
state, federal and local permits, including but not limited to, those related to sediment control, storm water, wetlands, streams, 
endangered species and historical sites.
6. Call NCDOT District 2 Office at 252-649-6500 at least 48 hours prior to beginning construction and once completed or Email 
D2D2notifications@ncdot.gov.
7. Page 9 of the Policy on Street and Driveway Access Manual states “Access connections and building construction must start 
within one year after the approval date of the permit.” Access connections include both temporary and permanent when shown in 
the supporting plans. “At the discretion of the District Engineer, an extension of time not to exceed 90 days may be granted.” This 
time extension request must be submitted in writing to the District Engineer.
8. Engineer of Record certification stating the subdivision was designed to NCDOT Subdivision Roads Minimum Construction 
Standards has been received and reviewed. A Subdivision Road Acceptance Checklist has been completed confirming the 
design meets minimum requirements.
9. Roadway improvements (left and right turn lanes) will be constructed prior to any home being occupied.
10. Confirm with Ray Bennett of Pamlico County that their required bond includes roadway improvements on NC55.

03/21/2024District Engineer























BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Health Director Quarterly Report 

Health Director Melanie Campen will be in attendance to present the Health Director 
Quarterly Report. 

Tab 12



























































BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

April 11, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Closed Session Health Director Performance Review 

I am requesting a closed session to discuss the above referenced personnel issue. 

Tab 13


	4-15-2024 Agenda 
	3-20-2024 Budget Retreat Minutes 
	4-1-2024 Minutes 
	1. Budget Amendments 
	2. Release/Refund GAP Bills Erroneously Issued to Elected Officials 
	3. Upgrade Body/Car Camera System for Sheriff's Dept.
	4. Request to Reappoint Debra Harrison to PCC Board of Trustees 
	5. Appointment to JCPC - Marlo Blake 
	6. Resolution Supporting Application for SRF Funding 
	7. Request to Release GAP Bill for Jesse Adams 
	8. Town of Vandemere Request Enforcement of Pamlico County Dangerous Animal Ordinance within Town 
	9. Project Ordinance for Kershaw WTP Project 
	10. Select Architect to Implement Recommendations of PC Space Planning and Feasibility Study 
	11. Amended Plat - Cutter Bay Subdivision 
	12. Health Director Quarterly Report 
	13. Closed Session - Health Director Performance Review 



